
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

AGENDA 

August 26, 2014 

1



 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION August 26, 2014 
REGULAR MEETING   7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 
 
 
ROLL CALL: FAKKEMA       WASINGER     
 

JENSEN       PETERSON          
    
   FREEMAN       SCHLECHT    
  
 
 
     
1. Approval of Minutes – July 22, 2014 

 
2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items not 

otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Page 9 

3. 2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT –  AMENDMENT/CORRECTION TO 
THE URBAN GROWTH AREAS (UGA) – Public Hearing 

 The Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing on amendments proposed to 
correct the City’s UGA boundaries to reflect the County’s decision on the 2005 
amendments.  This is a correction to the City’s Future Land Use Map which will remove 
areas that were added in 2005.  Additions to the UGA are not proposed at this time.  The 
Planning Commission was introduced to the topic at the July 22, 2014 meeting.  The City 
Council will consider this amendment along with other 2014 Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments at the end of this year. 

  
 Page 16 
4. 2014 COMPREHANSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – SCENIC VIEWS – Public Hearing 
 The Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing to amend the Comprehensive 

Plan and add scenic views identified in a study that was initiated in 2012.  The Study 
went through a public participation process and a criteria based review of several views 
from and within the City.  The Planning Commission has identified 4 viewsheds 
(Northbound SR 20 – Scenic Heights to Erie, Waterfront Trail, Regatta Drive– SE 8th to 
Pioneer Way, Southbound SR 20 and NE 16th Ave) to be considered for protection. The 
Planning Commission will formulate a recommendation to the City Council on this 
amendment. The City Council will consider this amendment along with other 2014 
Comprehensive Plan Amendments at the end of this year. 

 

2



MINUTES 

 

July 22, 2014 

3



 

Planning Commission 
July 22, 2014 

Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
July 22, 2014 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson, Greg Wasinger and 

Kristi Jensen 
Absent: Ana Schlecht 
Staff Present:  Senior Planner, Cac Kamak  

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. FREEMAN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 

TO APPROVE THE JUNE 24, 2014 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
No comments. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT – 1000 SE CITY BEACH STREET 
- Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 1) which listed the criteria used to 
review the land use map amendment proposed for 1000 City Beach Street.  The property is 
owned by the City and is currently designated as High Density Residential.  The proposal is to 
change the land use designation to Public Facilities (PF).  Since the City owns the property that 
it will not likely be developed as High Density Residential so Public Facilities is a more suitable 
designation for the property. 
 
Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing at 7:43 p.m.  Seeing none the public hearing was 
closed. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commission asked who would be responsible for the costs associated with 
transferring the remains to the property.  Mr. Kamak indicated that the settlement agreement 
with the Tribe is that if the PF land use designation is approved the property will be transferred 
to the tribe so that the remains from Pioneer Way can be placed at this site and the tribe would 
be responsible for arrangements on the property.   
 
ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 

TO RECOMMEND THAT CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE AMEMDMENT TO 
THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP CHANGING THE DESIGNATION OF 1000 SE 
CITY BEACH STREET FROM HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO PUBLIC 
FACILITIES. 

 
2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CORRECTION TO URBAN GROWTH AREA 
(UGA) – Public meeting 
Mr. Kamak displayed a map (Attachment 2) showing the areas to be removed from the City’s 
UGA.  Mr. Kamak explained that the areas were added to the City’s UGA during the 2005 
Comprehensive Plan amendment cycle and that the County denied all of UGA expansion areas 
except for one area north of Ault Field Road.   The City appealed the County’s decision to the 
Growth Management Board and Superior Court which upheld the County’s decision.  Now the 

4



 

Planning Commission 
July 22, 2014 

Page 2 of 2 

City needs to correct the map to remove those areas from the map to be consistent with the 
County. 
 
Mr. Fakkema asked for public comments. 
 
Hap Fakkema (2427 Moss Lane, Oak Harbor) asked if the 2005 population projections were 
less than projected.  Mr. Kamak said that the rate of population growth has dropped over the 
last ten years so the population projection was not even close.   
 
Hap Fakkema asked what the timeline was for processing requests to be added to the UGA.  
Mr. Kamak said no properties will be added this year.  The work program is to do the buildable 
lands analysis for the entire County this year and toward the end of this year or beginning of 
next year we will see what population needs to be accommodated within Oak Harbor and 
whether there is capacity within the current UGA to accommodate the population.  If not, then a 
strategy will be formulated. 
 
ADJOURN: 7:59 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

5



PC ATTACHMENT 1

1000 SE CITY BEACH STREET
LAND USE CHANGE
HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 
TO PUBLIC FACILITIES

2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendment

1000 City Beach Street – Land Use Designation
OHMC 18.15.080 – Review Criteria

(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and 
welfare in any significant way.

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and 
intent of the comprehensive plan.

(3) Th d t i i li ith th G th M t A t(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act 
and the countywide planning policies.

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of 
the community as a whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s 
comprehensive plan.

(5) Environmental impacts from the amendments have been addressed 
through SEPA review and/or measures have been included that 
reduce possible impacts.

6



PC ATTACHMENT 1

OHMC 18.15.080 – Review Criteria

6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth 
projections which were the basis of the comprehensive plan or to
subsequent updates to growth allocations.

7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land 
d di i hb h duses and surrounding neighborhoods.

8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction 
from the city council. 

9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified at the 
beginning of the process. 

Recommended Action

•Conduct Public Hearing

Recommend amending the Future Land•Recommend amending the Future Land
Use Map designation for 1000 SE City
Beach Street from High Density
Residential to Public Facilities.

7



N
W

 H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.
CROSBY  RD.

NW CROSBY AVE.

W. WHIDBEY  AVE.

NW CROSBY AVE.

NE  7TH  AVE.

N
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

SE  BARRINGTON  DR.

SE  8TH  AVE.

S
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

SW  6TH  AVE.
SW

 SW
ANTOW

N  AVE.

B
O

O
N

  R
D

. S
W

  R
O

S
A

R
IO

  P
L

. S
C

E
N

IC

NE  16TH  AVE.

GUN  CLUB  RD.

H
E

L
L

E
R

  R
D

.

GUN  CLUB  RD.

AULT  FIELD  RD.

STATE R
O

U
TE 2

0

STATE ROUTE 20

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

NE  16TH  AVE.

E. WHIDBEY  AVE.

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

TO
R

P
E

D
O

 D
R

.

SE  8TH  AVE.

SW B
A

R
R

DR.

IN
GTON

CRESCENT  HARBOR  RD.

STATE R
O

U
TE 2

0

H
E

IG
H

T
S

O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  R

D
.

S
T

.

S
W

 H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.

SW FORT NUGENT  AVE.

RD.

S
W

DR.

SE BAYSHORE

BAYSHORE  DR.

SE

PIONEER
E.

PIONEER

WAY

E.
WAY

SW LOERLAND DR.

N
E

G
O

LD
IE ST.

N
. O

A
K

H
A

R
B

O
R

S
T

.
N

. O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  S

T
.

SW
ANTOW

N  RD.

AULT  FIELD  RD.

W. WATERLOO RD.

AREAS (A,B,C, & D) TO BE

REMOVED FROM THIS CITY'S UGA

A

B

C

D

30000 1000 2000

Legend
 Navy Land
 City Limits
 UGA-City Adopted

County Approved

UGA Expansion

CITYOF

PC ATTACHMENT 2

8



2014 Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment 

 

Correction to Urban Growth Area 

(UGA) 

 

 

Public Hearing 

 

9



 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – URBAN GROWTH AREA 

AMENDMENT/CORRECTION 

DATE: AUGUST 26, 2014 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

  

 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this report is to review the Comprehensive Plan Amendment proposed to 

correct the Urban Growth Area (UGA) boundaries and reflect the County’s decision 

regarding the 2005 UGA expansion.  The correction involves removing areas from the 

City’s Future Land Use map that was originally adopted in 2005.  Undertaking this 

correction and amending the Future Land Use map will allow the City to set a clean slate 

for discussions regarding the 2016 update to the Comprehensive Plan and the next twenty 

year population projection.  

 

PROCESS: 

The process to amend the Comprehensive Plan is regulated by OHMC 18.15.  This 

Future Land Use Map amendment was placed on the preliminary docket this year to 

correct the map so that it is not confusing when discussion of the next 20 year population 

projection occurs for the County.  Public notification on the project will be in accordance 

to the requirements set forth in OHMC 18.20.380(5).  The land use change along with the 

other comprehensive plan amendments will be reviewed by the applicable criteria 

established under OHMC 18.15.080.   

 

BACKGROUND 

The City adopted a Future Land Use Map in 2005 with amendments to its UGA 

boundaries based on a population projection and land capacity analysis.  At that time, 

efforts to determine population projections and land capacity where done by the local 

jurisdiction and then forwarded to the County for action.  Therefore, the City adopted 

areas for expansion, denoted by green dotted lines in the attached map (Exhibit A).  The 

City then forwarded the amendments to the County for final approval.  However, the 

County did not agree on all the proposed amendments and the issue was debated for 

several years.  Eventually the County approved a UGA expansion that included only the 

area on the northeast corner of Goldie Road and Ault Field Road.  The City appealed the 

decision; however the Growth Management Board and the Courts upheld the County’s 

decision. 

 

 

10



2 
 

DISCUSSION 

The City is therefore utilizing the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendment’s annual review 

process to change the UGA boundaries and reflect the County’s decision. Since the 

Future Land Use Map is part of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the process established 

in OHMC 18.15 must be followed to amend it and reflect the correction. 

 

Correcting the Future Land Use map in 2014 will provide a clean slate to discuss the 

2016 amendments and the next 20 year population projection that is required as part of 

the major update.  Therefore the areas that are hatched on Exhibit B are recommended for 

removal from the City’s UGA.  There are no additional areas proposed to be added at this 

time. 

 

Property owners of the areas that are to be removed have been notified of this amendment 

by mail.  Citizens that participated in the 2005 UGA amendment have also been notified 

of this correction.  Staff has received a few phone calls from property owners to clarify 

the amendment and those owners have not raised any specific concerns regarding the 

correction. 

 

The City and the County are approaching population projections and UGA amendments 

slightly differently this time.  The County and Municipalities have worked 

collaboratively in updating the 20 year projection for the 2016 Comprehensive Plan 

update.  The City and the County are also working jointly on the Buildable Lands 

Analysis for the entire County.  This collaborative work will help the City and the County 

to jointly determine if the UGA boundaries need to be amended with the 2016 update. 

 

Review Criteria 

OHMC 18.15.080 establishes the criteria to review annual amendments to the 

Comprehensive Plan were the criteria are applicable.  The criteria and their review are 

provided below. 

 

(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in 

any significant way. 

Correcting the UGA boundaries on the City’s Future Land Use Map will not 

adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in a significant way. 

 

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 

comprehensive plan. 

This proposed amendment to the Future Land Use Map should be considered as a 

correction rather than a removal of residential capacity.  Removing these areas 

from the City’s Future Land Use Maps will make the UGA boundaries consistent 

with the County, and “consistency” is an important goal of the Growth 

Management Act and the City’s Comprehensive Plan.    

 

11



3 
 

(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the 

countywide planning policies. 

“Consistency” is one of the prime reasons the requirements of the Countywide 

Planning Policies and the Growth Management Act.  Correcting the UGA 

boundaries on the City’s Future Land Use Map to reflect the County’s decision is 

promoting consistency between the jurisdictions’ plans and is therefore furthering 

the goals of the Growth Management Act and the County Wide Policies. 

 

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the community 

as a whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 

This amendment is proposed to resolve the inconsistency that resulted from the 

County’s decision on the 2005 UGA amendments.  Correcting the Future Land 

Use Map will allow the City and the County to work forward on the 2016 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments and determine the needs and changing 

circumstances of the community.   

 

(5) Environmental impacts from the amendments have been addressed through SEPA 

review and/or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 

There are no immediate environmental impacts from correcting the Future Land 

Use Map.   

   

(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which 

were the basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth 

allocations. 

This amendment corrects the Future Land Use Map to reflect the County’s 

decision on the 2005 UGA Amendments.  The areas that were added in 2005 were 

based on a capacity analysis done by the City at that time.  However, the County 

determined that additional lands were not needed by the City to meet its 20 year 

growth projections.  Correcting the Future Land Use Map will allow the City and 

the County to work together on the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendments and 

determine if additional capacity is needed for the next 20 year projection. 

 

(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and 

surrounding neighborhoods. 

This criterion is not applicable to this amendment and is intended for change in 

land uses. 

 

(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city 

council.  

This is not applicable for this change since it does not address a new policy 

direction. 

 

(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified at the beginning of the 

process.  

12



4 
 

 Not applicable. 

 

From the above review, it can be determined that there will not likely be any immediate 

adverse impacts from correcting the Future Land Use Map to be consistent with the 

County’s decision on the 2005 UGA Amendments. 

 

The 2016 Update to the Comprehensive Plan for Island County and Oak Harbor will 

provide an opportunity for both jurisdictions to work together in determining the 

development capacities in the County and the City and jointly determining whether the 

UGA boundaries need to be amended.  Working cooperatively will help avoid future 

inconsistencies in the demarcation of the UGA.   

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Conduct Public Hearing 

 Recommend amending the Future Land Use Map to remove areas from the UGA 

on the City’s Future Land Use Map to be consistent with the County’s decision on 

the 2005 UGA Amendments. 
   

13



NE 16th Avenue

Torpedo Road

Re
ga

tta
 D

riv
e

Cresent Harbor Road

SR
 20

NE Goldie Street

NE 16th Avenue

NE Easy Street

SE Maylor Street

SW Roeder  Dr ive

SW
 S

ce
ni c

 H
e ig

h ts
 S

tre
e t

SW
 Fr

eu
nd

 S
tre

et

SW Talon Loop

SW Eagle Vista Avenue

SW
 C

a p
ita

l D
riv

e

Waterloo Road

B a
ld a

 R
oa

d

SR
 2 0

NW 14th Way

C r
os

by
 R

oa
d

NW 13th Court pvt

NW 12th Court pvt

NW 12th Loop pvt

NW
 Q

ue
st 

St
ree

t

Ol
y m

pic
 D

riv
e E

as
t

Shepard Street

He
me

nw
ay

 P
lac

e

O l
ym

pic
 D

riv
e E

as
t

Olym
pi c

 D
riv

e

R idgevie w Drive

Air
lin

e W
ay

Highland Drive

Fairvue Pl

Cashmere Place

SW St
roo

ps 
Dr i

ve

SW
 R

oo
dz

an
t S

tre
et

S W
 St

ro
op

s D
riv

e

Orchard Loop

SW Th ornber ry  Dr ive

SW Putnam Drive

SW
 To

uri
st 

   S
tre

et

Hig hland Drive
Cres tv iew Place

Orchard Loop

Mont
ice

llo 
Way

Victo
ri a 

Way

Care
free

 Pla
ce

Orchard Loop

Loerland Ln

Mont
ice

l lo 
Way

Lo
erl

an
d L

n

SW 19th Court

SW Kim ball Drive

SW Glenmont Court

Ba
y m

on
t   

 D
riv

e

Oakmont Lane

Mobius Loop

Erin Park Rd.

SW Berwick  Drive SW
 B

erw
ick

 D
riv

e

S W
 C

arn
eg

ie 
St

ree
t

S W
 Ab

erd
ee

n C
ou

rt

SW
 F a

irw
a y

 P
o in

t D
ri v

e

SW
 N

ien
hu

is 
St

ree
t

SW
 M

ulb
err

y P
lac

e

SW
 S

tr e
ml

er 
Dr

ive

SW
 O

liv
e S

t re
et

SW Strem
ler Drive

SW Stremler Drive

Ridgeway Drive

Me
rid

ian
 St

ree
t

Spa rro w C irc
le

SW
 R

os
ar

io 
P la

ce

Rid
ge

w a
y D

rive

Greenwood Street

Kiwi Acres Ln

SW Harbor Vista  CircleSW Harbor   
  V iew

SW
 Vi

sta
 Pa

rk 
Dr

ive

SW 24th Avenue

SW Capital St.

SE 6th Avenue
SE 6th Avenue

SE 4th Avenue

SE 8th Avenue

SE Castle Park Ct

SE 8th Avenue

SE Glencoe Street

SE 6th Avenue

SE 5th Avenue

SE Jerome Street

SE Cabot D ri ve

SE 4th Avenue

SE 3rd Avenue

SE Ely Street

SE Fisher Street

SE 2nd Place

SE Glencoe Street

E.  Whidbey Avenue

NW

 Ensign Drive

NW
 Fa

irh
a v

en
 D

riv
e

NW 3rd Avenue

SW
 Ji

b S
tre

et

SW Judson Drive

SW
 La

ns
da

le 
St r

ee
t

SW
 Ju

ds
on

 D
riv

e

SW 4th Court

SW
 M

u z
za

ll S
tre

et SW 4th Avenue

SW
 K

irk
 La

ne

S W
 Lo pez  Dr ive

SW 6th Avenue

SW 10th Court

SW Harrier Street

Pa
int

ers
 W

ay

Scheer Ln.

SW Harrier Circle

SW Castilian Drive

SW
 In

gl e
wo

od  
La

ne

SW
 K

ing
ma

 C
ou

rt

SW
 Ju

ds
o n

 D
riv

e

SW Casti lian Drive

SW
 M

cC
ro

ha
n S

tre
et

SW
 Lo

n d
on

 Te
rr a

ce

SW Quinault Stree
t

SW 10th Avenue

SW 9th Avenue

SW 8th Avenue

SW
 O

tte
rcr

es
t S

tre
e t

SW
 P

uff
in  

St
ree

t

SW 7th Avenue

SW Regency Dr ive

S W
 Q

u il
ce

ne
 La

ne

SW Robertson Drive
SW Putnam Drive

NE 7th Avenue

N. M idwa y Blvd

SW Periwink le Lane

SW 2nd Court

SW
 Le

ch
i D

riv
e SW Lechi Drive

SW Ponsteen Drive

SW
 O

ve
rw

ay
 S

t

NW Loerland Drive
NW R

oe
de

r D
riv

e

NW Outrigger Loop

NW 2nd Avenue

NW
 O

xfo
rd 

A v
en

ue

NW Outboard Drive

NW 5th Avenue

N.
 H

ell
er

 St
re e

t

NW 5th Avenue

NW
 M izzen Drive

NW
 L a

tee
n S

tre
et

NW Longview Drive

N E
 E

rns
t S

tre
et

NE
 E

llis
 W

ay

NW
 Lo

ng
vie

w 
Dr

ive

N W
 Lo

ft o
n L

oo
p

NW
 K

ey
 S

tre
et

NW
 P

row
 St

ree
t

NW 8 th Avenue

NW 9th Place

NW Crosby Avenue

He
lle

r R
oa

d

SW Fairway Point Drive

N. Fairway Lane

Mu
llig

an
 W

ay

Wedgewood Lane

Fa
i rw

ay 
Lan

e

L inks Way

SW Ft. Nugent Avenue

SW
 Q

u in
ce

 S
tre

et SW 17th Avenue

SW Rock Rose DriveSW
 W

at e
rs i

de
 C

ou
r t

SW 17th Avenue

SW 17th Avenue

SW
 Sp

rin
gfi

eld
    

Co
urt

SW
 Ta

ho
e S

tre
et

S W
 Ul

ys s
es 

Str
ee

t

Lato Drive

No
rm

an
 D

riv
e

Fi r
esid

e Lane

Tulip  Ct

Juniper Ct

SW 16th Avenue

SW
 U

n io
n S

t ree
t

SW Xavi er Drive pvt SW
 Va

ngu
ard

 Stree
t pv

t

SW
 W

ind
sor

 St
ree

t  pv
t

SW Winchester Street pvt

SW
 Vic

tory
 Stree

t

NW
 Q

ua
rte

rba
c k

 Lo
op

SW 16th  Avenue

Independence CtPatriot Way

Colonial Way

Heritag
e Way

Crosswoods D rive

Liberty Lane

S W
 R

eg
en

cy
 D

riv
e

SW Sunnyside Ave

SW
 S i

lv e
rbe

rry
 St

r ee
t

SW
 U

pla
nd

 Co
u rt

SW Thor
nbe

rry 
Drive

SW
 Th

orn
be

rr y
 Dr

iv e

Swantown Road

S. 
He

lle
r S

tre
et

SW Kitti ta
s C

t

SR 20

SR
 20

SW Looking Glass Loop

SW 11th Court

SW 12th Ct

SW Swantown Avenue

SW
 Is

lan
de

r L
a n

e

S W 13th Avenue

SW
 K lick

itat
 Te

rra
ce

SW Ka lama Loop

SW
 Ka

lee
ton

 Lo
op

SW Barri ngton Dri ve

S W
 In

gl e
sid

e C
t

SW 14th Ct

NW
 Ke

lly
 D

r.

NW Lola Terrace

NW
 K

at h
lee

n D
riv

e

NW Redwing Drive

NW
 R

ed
w in

g D
r iv

e

NW Redwing Drive N
W

 Fa
lls

 C
ree

k L
o o

p
NW

 E b
b T

id e
 C

t

NW Columbia DriveNW
 F a

irh
av

en
 D

ri v
e

NW Hiyu Drive

Nw 7th Avenue

N W Haslo Place

NW Hiyu Dr ive

NW
 Fr

ig a
te 

St
re e

t

N W Iss
aq

ua
h S

t

NW
 E

lwh
a S

tre
et

NW Dory Drive

NW Illahee Drive

NW Hyak Drive

NW Cherry Hill Loop pvt

NW
 Al

mo
nd

 Lo
op

 pv
t

N W
 C

am
e ll

a L
oo

p p
vt

N .
 O

ak
 H

arb
or 

St
ree

t

NE Cordero Place

Robin Lane

Gun Club Road

NE Cordero Place

NE Big Berry Loop pvt

NE 10th Avenue

NW Crosby Avenue

NW Cathlamet D rive

NW
 A

nc
ho

r  D
riv

e

NW 10th Court

N W 11th Court

NW Dory D riv e

NW    C
li pp

er 
Driv

e

NW 8th Avenue

NW 7th Court

NW
 C

ath
lam

et 
Dr

ive

NW Calista Ct.

NW Columbia Drive

NE
 A

tal
an

ta  
   W

ay

N .
 O

ak
 H

ar b
or 

St
ree

t

NE 7th Avenue

Quail Lane
Ri

fl e
 R

oa
d

NE
 K

oe
tje

 S
tre

et

SR
 20

NE 7th Avenue

AlleyNE
 Ha

rve
st  D

rive

NE Faber Stree t

SR
 20

NE 4th Avenue

NE Izett Street

Alley

NE 3rd Avenue

NE Kettle Street

N. Midway Blvd

NE Melrose Drive

NE Regatta Drive

NE Sealth  PL

NE Quill Ter

S. 
O a

k H
ar

bo
r S

tr e
et

NE Sumner Drive

NE Patrick Lane

NE O
'Le

ary
 St r

eet

NE Nar rows Avenue
NE Rikse n Way

NE Ronhaar Street

NE 11th Avenue

NE Nash Ter

NE 10th Avenue

NE 9th Avenue

NE Muller Place

NE Meeter Ln

NE Netlam Ln

NE O'Leary Street

NE 8th Avenue

NE 8th Avenue

NE 7th Place

SW Ft. Nugent Avenue

SE
 A t

las
 St

r e
et

NE 7th Court

NE 6th Avenue
NE 6th Avenue

NE 5th Avenue

NE 4th Avenue

NE 5th Avenue

NE Ronhaar Street

NE 4th Avenue

NE Queets Street

NE 3rd Avenue

NE 2nd Avenue

NE Nunan Loop

NE 1st Avenue

E. Whidbey Avenue

SE 2nd Court

Maui Ave

SE Midway Blvd

SE Neil Street

SE O'Leary Street

SE Pasek Street

SE Quaker Street

SE 8th Avenue SE Pasek Street

SE Regatta Drive

SE 10th Avenue
SE Pioneer Way

SE Maylor Street

SE 9th Avenue

SE Midway Blvd

SE Jensen Street

SE Ilwaco Alley

SE Barrington Drive

SE Ha th away    S tree t

SE Ireland Street

SE Pioneer Way

SE  D ock S treet SE Fidalgo Avenue

SE  E ly S tree t

SE 11th Avenue

SE Barrington Drive

SE Bayshore DriveS E C it y Beach St re et

SE Pioneer Way

SW Beeksma Drive

SW
 Dilla

rd L
ane

S.
 B

ee
ks

ma
 D

riv
e

SW Bayshore Drive

SW
 B

arl
ow

 S
tr e

et

SW
 Er

ie 
St

ree
t

S W
 Bo

wm
e r 

Str
ee

t

SW Barrington DriveSW
 Fl

e e
t  S

tr e
et

SW Franklin Ct

SE Pioneer Way

C oral  Sea Ave

SW 10th Avenue

SW 8th Avenue

SW
 E

ch
o L

oo
p

SW 6th Avenue

SW
 D

ye
r S

tre
et

SW 6th Avenue

SW

 Erie Circ le

SW 4th Avenue

SW 3rd Avenue

SW 3rd Avenue

SW 2nd Avenue
SW 2nd Avenue

SW
 Fe

s ti
va

l C
t

SW
 C

ru
ise

 S
tre

et

SW
 E

sto
n C

t

SW
 D

isc
ov

er y
 St

re
et NW

 B
os

un
 S

tre
et

W. Whidbey Avenue

NW
 C

a p
ta i

n C
ou

rt

NW
 D

elt
a C

ou
rt

NW 1st Avenue

SW 1st Avenue

NW 2nd Avenue

NW Kitsap Terrace

N.
 H

ell
er 

St
ree

t

NW Lanyard Loop

W. Whidbey Avenue

Gr
en

tje
's 

L n
S W

 S
ce

nic
 H

eig
h ts

 St
ree

t

SW 6th Avenue

SW
 E

r ie
 S

tre
e t

Rig
gin

g S
tre

et

NW
 E

ns
ign

 D
riv

e

O a
k H

ar b
or  

R o
ad

Rebecca Lane

Summit Blvd.

Ault Field Road

Yvonne Lane

Linda Lane

Arwin Dr.

Oak Street

Go
ldi

e R
oa

d

Cat ali na Dr .

W.  Tulagi Ave.

W. Pioneer Way

To
rpe

do
 Rd

.

Industrial Ave

Co
lin

 La
ne

Technical Drive

Gun Club Road

NE Taftson St.

SW
 N

av
iga

tor
 Lo

op

SW
 Fa

irh
av

en
 D

r

N W
 S

ce
nic

 Vi
sta

 S
t.

NW
 U

ps
ala

 D
r

NW Upsala Dr

NW 9th
 Ave

SW 3rd Avenue

W. Coral Sea Ave.

E. Coral Sea Ave.

Blue Lake Ave.

E. Coral Sea Ave.

Mountain Cir.

Rainer Cir.

Glacier Ct.

Cascade Cir.

Vista WayVista Way

Baker Ct.

Stua
rt L

n.
Adam

s C
ir.

Mt. Hood Way

Olympic Ct.

ELEM ENTARY
BRO ADVIEW

SCHO OL

OAK HARBOR

MIDDLE SCHO OL

MIDDLE SCHO OL

NORTH WHIDBEY

ELEM ENTARY
HILLC REST

SCHO OL

OAK HARBOR

HIG H SCHO OL

ELEM ENTARY

SCHO OL

OAK HARBOR

SCHO OL DIST RICT
OAK HARBOR

NO.  201

SCHO OL

OLYM PIC  V IEW

ELEM ENTARY

DISTRICT

OFF ICES

COLLEGE
SKAGIT VALLEY

ELEM ENTARY
CLOVER VAL LEY

SCHO OL

M E A D O W SW E S T 

C R O S B Y

C O M M O N S

P L A
 C E

I S L A
 N D

H I L L S

T H
 E 

H E I  G
 H T S

DIV. 3

R I D G E H A V E N

S U N S E T

S P R I N G T R E E

DIV. 3

W H I D B E Y  G R E E N

W 
H 

I D
 B 

E Y
  L 

I N
 K 

S

DIV. 4

DIV. 6

H I G H L A N D 
F T.  N

 U G E N T 

E A
 S 

T  
P A

 R 
K

W E S T R I D G E

F A I  R W A Y

DIV. 5

F I  R
  E  S  I  D

  E

DIV. 1

S W A N T O W N  R I D G E

S W A N T O W N  R I D G E

COUNTRY CLUB

DIV. 2

WHIDBEY GOLF & 

DIV. 6

E S T A T E S

F I R
 E S I D

 E

F I R
 E S I D

 E

F I  R  E  S  I  D  E

F I  R  E  S  I  D  E

DIV. 2

DIV. 3

A M
 B

 E
 R

 D
 A 

L E

D I V.
 1

D I V. 2

S H
 A 

N 
N 

O 
N 

  F
 O

 R
 E

 S 
T

DI
V. 

4

DIV. 2
DIV. 7

DIV. 4

DIV. 5

M E A D O W R I D G E

DIV. 5

C E D A R

DIV. 4

G L E
 N 

D I V. 3

M E A D O W

P A R K 

H A R B O R 

A D D I T I  O NA D D I T I  O N

G A R D E N S 

WESTSIDE

E L Y ' S

ELY'S
REPLAT

E A G L E

C R E S T 

E S T A
 T E S 

H A R B O R 

V I S
 T A 

V I
 S

 T 
A 

S C
 E

 N
 I C

 

DRIFTWOOD

ADDITION

D I L L A R D'S

C A S C A D E

V I L
 L A

 G E

E A S T V I E
 W

E S T A
 T E S

C  A  R  L  T  O  N
H  E  I  G  H  T  S

S O U T H W O O D

D I V. 3

DIV. 2
DIV. 1

E N
 T 

E 
R 

P R
 I S

 E

AD
DI

TIO
N

AD
DI

TIO
N

B R O A D V I  E W  A D D I T I O N

2ND  A D D.  P A T TO N' S

F  I R S T   A D D I T I O N

P  A  T T O N' S  

WOODLAWN
PATTON'S 

ESTATES

V A L LE  Y   

B O W E R S

V I  E W

S H A D Y

SM
ITH

'S 
 AD

D.

RO
GE

R'
S

H A R B O R

O A K

AD
DI

TIO
N

O A K S
S  E  C  O  N  D

B  E  E  K  S  M  A ' S

A D D I T I  O N
F  I  R  S  T  

B  E  E  K  S  M  A ' S

A D D I T I  O N

O A K G R O V E

P A
 R  K L A

 N  D

A D D I T I  O N

G R E E N W O O D

A D D I T I  O N

DIV. 7

S  H  A  D  O  W

S P R I N G  H I  L L

D I V. 2

N O R T H

M A H L E R S
P E A S E ' SP E A S E ' S

H E R I  T A G E 

M A H L E R S

F A
 K

 K 
E 

M 
A '

 S
 

DIV. 1

DIV. 2

D O W N I N G

F I
 R

 S
 T 

 A 
D 

D 
.

P A S E K' S

F I R S T   ADD.

H A V E N

QUIET WOODS

SPRINGTIME

G L E N N

DIV. 2

DIV. 1

DIV. 8

Y O R K-

E L L M O R E A D D I  T I O N

DIV. 1T O W N 

H A W T H O R N E

D I V. 1

DIV. 1

DIV. 3

W 
I C

 H
 E

 R
 ' S

F  
I  R

  D
  A

  L
  E

DIV. 2

DIV. 3

DIV. 3

P L A C E

R E D W I N G 

T A R Y N C H E R R Y   H
 I L 

L   P
 R D

S P R I N G  H O L L O W

K O
 E

 T 
J E

P A
 T T

 O N S

A D
 D

 I T
 I O

 N
P A

 S T
 U R E

O L Y M P I  C
O L Y M P I  C 

G A R D E N S 

2n
d

RE
PL

AT
 O

F

K O
 E

 T 
J E

O L Y M P I  C 

A D
 D

 I T
 I  O

 N

K O
 E

 T 
J E

A D
 D

 I T
 I O

 N2n
d

A D D I T I  O N

T E R R A C E

A D D I T I  O N

R U D D I C K

E V
 E 

R 
G 

R 
E 

E 
N

E V E R G R E E N

S C E N I C 

T E R P S T R A' S

FIRST ADDITION TO

H A R B O R  

V I E W

H I L L 

C 
O 

L O
 N

 I  A
 L 

C 
O 

U 
R 

T

BERQUAM'S

A U D R E Y      H O M E S

KOETJES

FOURTH

DIV. 1

K O
 E

 J 
T E

 S

E A S T H I L L

F O R E S T

U P L A N D S

T I M B E R L A N E

DIV. 1

R I
 D G E W

 O O D
DIV. 

2

T H I R D  

K O E T J E' S    

DIV. 2

DIV. 
1

PARKSIDE

LYNNWOOD

DIV. 2 DIV. 1

W E S T

DIV. 7

DIV. 7

DIV. 3

DIV. 4DIV. 5

DIV. 6

DIV. 1

DIV. 2

C R E S T 

A D D I T I  O N

A D D I T I  O N

P A C I F I C
 

O L Y M P I  C 

ELY'S ADDITION

P  A  S T U R E  
A D D. 

G A R D E N S 

D I V.  2 

V I E W 

DI
V. 

2

DI
V. 

3

DI
V. 

1

DIV. 1

P I P E R
H E I  G H T S

K I M B A L L
T R E E

K I M
 B A L L

DIV. 1

DIV. 1

DIV. 4

DIV. 3

H E I  G
 H T S

CA
SC

AD
E 

VI
EW

F I R S T 

KO
ET

JE
'S

DIV. 1DIV. 2

DIV. 3

D I V. 2

DIV. 2

D I V. 1

H  E  I  G  H  T  S

D I V. 1

C  A  R  L  T  O  N

DIV. 4

BEACH

DIV. 2

DIV. 2

D I V. 1

D I V. 4

DIV. 1

DIV. 1

DIV. 1

F R E U N D

F L O W E R S 
H E I  G H T S 

H E A T H E R W O O D S

DIV. 2

H E I  G H T S P L A C E 

G O L D I E   R O A D   A C R E S 

R 
E P

 L 
A T

K O
 E

 T 
J E

K O
 E

 T 
J E

A D
 D

 I T
 I  O

 N

K O
 E

 T 
J E

R 
E P

 L 
A T

A D D I T I  O N

M O S H I E R' S 
C A S C A D E 

A D
 D

 I T
 I  O

 N

DIV. 2

A D D I T I  O NV I S T A 

G L E N

A D D I T I  O N
F I R S T

DIV. 1

DIV. 2

DIV. 1

P A
 R K   P

 R D
W O O D B U R Y   

DIV. 4

DIV. 3

DIV. 5

DIV. 1
D A W N C R E S T

DIV. 2

I N D I A N 

C R O S S W O O D S 

R I D G E

DIV. 2

DIV. 1

W H I D
 B E Y  C O U N T R Y 

DIV. 3

DIV. 1

DIV. 3

C L U
 B  E S T A T E S 

W H I D B E Y  C O U N T R Y 

C L U B  E S T A T E S 

A C R E S 

P A  T T O N' S   H I L L  C R E  S  T  V  I L L A G E  

DIV. 4

DIV. 1

A C R E S 

W A T E R L O O 

DIV. 1

W A T E R L O O 

DIV. 2

H I G H L A N D

DIV. 1

DIV. 1

T R A C E 

A C R E S
W O O D R I D G E

S U M M E R 

W I N D 

P L A C EH  A R B O R 

Future Water Tank

P O I N
 T   P

 R D
F A I  R

 W A Y

R 
O 

S 
E  

H 
I L

 L 
 P

 R
 D

H 
E I

 G
 H

 T 
S

B A
 R

 R
 I N

 G
 T 

O 
N

DI
V. 

1

DI
V. 

2

DIV. 1

DIV. 3

DIV. 2

DIV. 4

P A
 R 

K  
P R

 D

H I
 G 

H L
 A 

N D

F R O S T A DP O N D

G L E N

DIV. 1

DIV. 2

DIV. 4

DIV. 6

H I L L C R E S T 
V I L L A G E 

DIV. 1

P A T T O N' S 
H I L L C R E S T 
V I L L A G E 

DIV. 2

P A T T O N' S 

H I G H L A N D S   W E S T

DIV. 1

P A T T O N' S 
H I L L C R E S T 

V I L L A G E 
DIV. 4

C  A S T I L I A N  H I L L S 

DIV. 5

G A R D E N S 

K O
 E

 T 
J E

A D
 D

 I T
 I  O

 N

W E S T S I  D EA D D I T I  O N

DIV. 5

DIV. 1

CONSTANCE

COURT

HAR
BO R V IEW

MO BIL
E  HOME PA

RK

PARKWOO D M ANOR

MO BILE  HOM E PARK

MO BILE  HOM E PARK
WEST ERN V ILLAGE

MO BILE  HOM E PARK

MO BILE  HOM E PARK
WEST ERN V ILLAGE

TOW N &  COUNT RY TOW N &  COUNT RY 
MO BILE  HOM E PARK

CONDO MINIUM
SCENIC VIEW

SCENIC

TOW NHOM ESTERRACE

STATIONHARBO R

WATERSIDE
CONDOS

WHIDBEY C OTTAG ES

OAK HO LLOW  M OBILE  HO ME PARK

NAS WHIDBEY 
SEAPLANE BASE

MAYLOR POINT

NAS WHIDBEY 
AULT FIELD

ALDERBROOK

CONDOS

BRANCA'S 1ST

OLD

HARBOR PARK

OAK HARBOR

CIV IC

CENT ER

MARINA

OAK HARBOR

CITY
SHOP

HAR
BO R V IEW

MO BIL
E  HOME PA

RK

HALL
CITY

POLICE

PARKWOO D M ANOR

MO BILE  HOM E PARK

MO BILE  HOM E PARK
WEST ERN V ILLAGE

MO BILE  HOM E PARK

MO BILE  HOM E PARK
WEST ERN V ILLAGE

TOW N &  COUNT RY TOW N &  COUNT RY 
MO BILE  HOM E PARK

DEPART MENT

Cit
y O

wn
ed

 W
etl

an
ds

Bare Land

CONDO MINIUM
SCENIC VIEW

SCENIC

TOW NHOM ESTERRACE

STATIONHARBO R

WATERSIDE
CONDOS

Landfill

Re
cy

le 

Public Work Shops

Tra
ns

fer

WHIDBEY C OTTAG ES

OAK HO LLOW  M OBILE  HO ME PARK

Neil Tower Museum

MAYLOR POINT

SKATEBOARD 

SPORTS

FIELD

SWIMM ING

PARK
POOL

GOLF COURSE

YACHT CLUB

FIRESIDE
PARK

PAR K

PAR K

WALK WAY
PAR K

WALK WAY PAR K

PAR
K

RUTH COHEN
PARK

PARK
KIMBALL

SPRING TREE
PARK

PA
R

K

PARK

WOODBURY
PARK

Pocket Park

Koetje Park

RIDGEWOOD PARK

PARK
CI TY

LUECK PARK RIDGEHAVEN 

PARK

WINDJAMMER

PARK

BEEKSMA PARK PARK

RAMALEY PARK

Pocket Park

PAR K
CITY

SUMNER PARK

MEADOWRIDGE
PARK

TYHUIS
PARK

PARK
SHADO W GLEN

PARK
REDW ING

VO LUNTEER PARK

PARK
GARDENS
HOLLAND

NEIL PARK &
HOLLAND GARDENS

SMIT H PARK

VETERAN'S PARK

FORT NUGENT PARK
FREUND

MARSH

Off-Leash

Regional
Ball Fields

Dog Park

FLINTSTONE PARK

PARK
CI TY

PARK

RE
GA

TT
A 

DR
.

WA
KE

 AV
E.

EA
ST

 PI
ONE

ER
 W

AY
TO

RPEDO ROAD

CLOV ER ST.

HERON ST.

GUAM AVE.

FIELD ST.

HEATHE R ST.
REED ST.

MEADOW DR.

RO
BIN

  S
T.

JAY ST.

BRIAR CIR.

RAVEN DR.

WAK E LANE

GROUS E LN.

WOODPECKER LN.

BRANT ST.

LARK ST.

GOLDFINCH S T.

CARDINAL

THRUSH LN.

WHIDB EY AVE.

OS PRE Y S T.

SWA N DR.

ORIOLE ST.

CANARY  S T.

SANDSTONE  DR.

AGATE CT.

GE MSTONE  DR.

SLATE DR.

QUARTZ DR.

WA
KE

 AV
E.

EAGLE  LOOP

OP Q-ORIOLE ST.

ROCKHILL
TERRACE

SARATOGA
HEIGHTS

LN.

EAST PIONEER WAY

City of  Oak Harbor
Future Land Use Map Designation Map

Adopted December 2012

Scale:  1"= 2,000'

0 930 1,860465 Feet

Disclaimer:
Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy,  eliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping
products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person
or entity who relies on any information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

*Note - The Urban Growth Area (UGA) depicted on this map reflects the City of Oak Harbor’s growth boundary as adopted by City Council in 2005.  This boundary was updated in 2005
during the Comprehensive Plan review process and was amended to meet projected growth through 2025 as mandated by the Growth Management Act.  Island County has not adopted the
City of Oak Harbor’s UGA and maintains a different UGA boundary as shown on this map.

NAS Whidbey Accident Potential Zones

City Boundary
Urban Growth Boundary*
(City of Oak Harbor Adopted)

NAS Noise Subdistricts
Federal

Urban Growth Boundary*
(Island County Adopted) Subdistrict 1

Subdistrict 2
Subdistrict 3

Central Business District
Enterprise Area

Accident Potential 
Subdistrict I

Accident 
Potential  

Subdistrict III

Accident Potential 
Subdistrict II

Noise Subdistrict C ( > 75 Ldn)

Noise Subdistrict B (65 Ldn - 75 Ldn)

Noise Subdistrict A (60 Ldn - 65 Ldn)

WE HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP CONSTITUTES THE
OFFICIAL LAND USE MAP AS APPROVED BY ORDINANCE #     
OF THE OAK HARBOR CITY COUNCIL. 
DATED THIS                           DAY OF                         2012.

BY                                                ATTEST
                      MAYOR                                        CITY CLERK 

Open Space 
Overlay Incentives

Medium-High Density Residential
Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Residential Office
Neighborhood Commercial
Central Business District
Community Commercial
Auto/Industrial Commercial
Highway Corridor Commercial

Planned Industrial Park
Planned Business Park
Industrial
Public Facilities
Residential Estate
Special Planning Area
Outside UGA

FUTURE LAND USE

Maritime

PC EXHIBIT A

14



N
W

 H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.
CROSBY  RD.

NW CROSBY AVE.

W. WHIDBEY  AVE.

NW CROSBY AVE.

NE  7TH  AVE.

N
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

SE  BARRINGTON  DR.

SE  8TH  AVE.

S
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

SW  6TH  AVE.
SW

 SW
ANTOW

N  AVE.

B
O

O
N

  R
D

. S
W

  R
O

S
A

R
IO

  P
L

. S
C

E
N

IC

NE  16TH  AVE.

GUN  CLUB  RD.

H
E

L
L

E
R

  R
D

.

GUN  CLUB  RD.

AULT  FIELD  RD.

STATE R
O

U
TE 2

0

STATE ROUTE 20

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

NE  16TH  AVE.

E. WHIDBEY  AVE.

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

TO
R

P
E

D
O

 D
R

.

SE  8TH  AVE.

SW B
A

R
R

DR.

IN
GTON

CRESCENT  HARBOR  RD.

STATE R
O

U
TE 2

0

H
E

IG
H

T
S

O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  R

D
.

S
T

.

S
W

 H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.

SW FORT NUGENT  AVE.

RD.

S
W

DR.

SE BAYSHORE

BAYSHORE  DR.

SE

PIONEER
E.

PIONEER

WAY

E.
WAY

SW LOERLAND DR.

N
E

G
O

LD
IE ST.

N
. O

A
K

H
A

R
B

O
R

S
T

.
N

. O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  S

T
.

SW
ANTOW

N  RD.

AULT  FIELD  RD.

W. WATERLOO RD.

AREAS (A,B,C, & D) TO BE

REMOVED FROM THIS CITY'S UGA

A

B

C

D

30000 1000 2000

Legend
 Navy Land
 City Limits
 UGA-City Adopted

County Approved

UGA Expansion

CITYOF

PC Exhibit B

15



2014 Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment 

 

Scenic Views 

 

 

Public Hearing 

 

16



 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – SCENIC VIEWS 

DATE: AUGUST 26, 2014 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

  

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this memo is to propose an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan to add 

language that identifies view corridors in Oak Harbor that is worth preserving.  Protecting scenic 

views is incorporated into several goals and policies, and this amendment will include a few 

view corridors that have been identified through a study that was initiated in 2012.   

 

BACKGROUND 

The Planning Commission chose to add the Scenic View study to the Comprehensive Plan 

Docket in 2012.  The study was categorized as “Discretionary” in accordance with the priority 

system established in OHMC 18.50.050.  The study was initiated with a public outreach effort 

that solicited photos from citizens on scenic views within Oak Harbor.  A wide variety of photos 

were received from the public.   

 

Prior to reviewing the numerous scenic views initially identified through the public input 

process, the Planning Commission discussed a set of review criteria to use in evaluating the 

scenic views.  The criteria were established based on various factors such as the viewpoints’ 

location on private or public property, the significance of a scenic landmark (Oak Harbor Bay, 

Mt. Baker etc.) and its visibility from public streets, parks and trails.  The Planning Commission 

also weighted the criteria since some factors warranted more importance than others.   

 

Based on the public outreach and staff survey, a list of 27 views was compiled for the Planning 

Commission’s consideration.  The views were discussed with the Planning Commission and each 

view was rated against the pre-established criteria.  The criteria based evaluation narrowed the 

scenic views of interest to 9 potential views.  The Planning Commission reviewed the nine 

potential views and narrowed it down further 4 views after considering impacts on private 

property. 

 

DISCUSSION 

The final list of views that were identified for protection is listed below. 

1. Northbound on SR 20 between SW Scenic Heights Street and SW Erie Street 

2. Southbound on SR 20 between NE 16
th

 Ave and Midway Blvd 

3. SE Regatta Drive between SE 8
th

 Street and SE 10
th

 Street 

4. Waterfront Trail from Windjammer Park to the Oak Harbor Marina 

 

1. Northbound SR 20 – Scenic Heights Street to Erie Street.  This is an entryway view into the 

community for the north bound traffic on SR 20.  The highway drops down in elevation from 

17



2 
 

the Swantown Avenue intersection and curves around the intersection on Scenic Heights as 

the view of Mt. Baker appears beyond the city landscape. 

 
 

2. Southbound SR 20 at NE 16
th

 Avenue – This is an entryway view into Oak Harbor for the 

south bound traffic.  The snowcapped Olympic Mountains are visible as one approaches the 

NE 16
th

 Avenue intersection on the highway.  

  
 

3. Regatta Drive – SE 8
th

 Avenue to SE Pioneer Way – This is another entryway view into 

the community for people entering via Regatta Drive.  The views of the marina and the 

water start to appear to the southbound traffic after SE 8
th

 Avenue.  The elevation drops 

down from there so the views are above the buildings.  The corridor view along the street 

remains while the view across properties starts to diminish close to SE 10
th

 Avenue. 

18



3 
 

 
 

4. Waterfront Trail – Windjammer Park to Oak Harbor Marina.  The trail runs along the 

shoreline providing open views of the water and the mountains.  There are some 

structures such as windbreakers that can potentially be removed to improve the view.   

 
Waterfront Trail – Windjammer Park 

 

19



4 
 

 

  
Waterfront Trail – Flintstone Park 

 

  
Waterfront Trail – Bayshore Drive 

 

 
Waterfront Trail – Pioneer Way 

 

Proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment Language 

The proposed amendment is to add language to the Urban Design Element of the Comprehensive 

Plan, specifically Goal 5.   The amendment will include language to identify the above 

mentioned four views.  The amendment will also include language to define a “view corridor” 

since the existing language only defines “viewsheds”.  The Comprehensive Plan currently 

defines “viewsheds" as a view from a single location.  Since the views identified for this 

amendment are along a street or a trail that can be categorized as a “corridor”, the amendment 

proposes to include a definition for it. The proposed amendment to Goal 5 of the Urban Design 

Element is provided in Exhibit A.  

 

 

 

20



5 
 

Review Criteria 

OHMC 18.15.080 establishes the criteria to review annual amendments to the Comprehensive 

Plan were the criteria are applicable.  The criteria and their review are provided below. 

 

(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in any 

significant way. 

The amendment to add specific scenic view corridors to the Comprehensive Plan may not 

have a direct relation to the public health, safety and welfare but it will contribute 

towards sustaining a quality of life that improves the public health, safety and welfare of 

the community.  These views when protected will provide a lasting quality that will 

attract new residents to Oak Harbor and therefore sustain the well-being of the town and 

increase the desire to live in this community.  

 

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 

comprehensive plan. 

There are several goals in the Comprehensive Plan that identify the importance of 

protecting scenic views.  Some of them are listed below along with their relevance to 

protecting scenic views.  There can be competing goals and policies within the 

Comprehensive Plan when attempting to protect scenic views.  This is because views can 

be categorized into two kinds.  One is views from the community (Oak Harbor Bay, The 

Cascades, The Olympic Mountains etc.) and the other as views within the community 

such as landscaping, natural areas, street trees, etc.  Oak Harbor’s landscape ordinance is 

a direct implementation of some of the goal and policies to buffer adjacent land uses as 

well as beautify the community.  Setbacks, design guidelines, buffering, retention of 

natural areas, parking lot landscaping etc. are a few of the zoning requirements that 

enhance the views and experience within the community.  Ironically, sometimes these are 

some of the reasons that scenic views from Oak Harbor are blocked or compromised.  In 

determining methods to protect scenic views from Oak Harbor, there needs to be a 

balance between protecting community interests and imposing restrictions on land 

owners.   

 

 Below is a list of goals and policies that are related to scenic views.  Some of these are 

identified with (+) and (-) to indicate their relevance to protecting scenic views from the 

community. 

 

Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies Relevance to Scenic Views and measures to 

protect them 

Land Use Element  

Goal 2 - To retain the character and 

visual identity of the Oak Harbor 

area. 

This goal in the Comprehensive Plan 

identifies various policies that the public 

believes will help to retain the 

community’s character and identity.  

2.a Encourage planned 

residential development (PRDs) 

with performance based 

standards. 

PRDs can be used as a form of 

development to increase densities in certain 

areas of the site and reduce it in other areas 

to protect viewsheds. 

2.b Consider view corridors (+) This policy identifies that views from 

21



6 
 

when planning for development. Oak Harbor are an essential characteristic 

to protecting the visual identity of Oak 

Harbor. 

2.c Draft and implement a 

landscape ordinance for inclusion 

with development regulations. 

This policy places the importance of 

having good views within Oak Harbor by 

including landscaping in the City’s 

development regulations.  Most 

developments in Oak Harbor that have 

landscaping islands in parking lots and on 

the perimeter of their property are directly 

related to the implementation of this policy.  

(-) Measures to reduce landscaping on the 

perimeter of lots to protect scenic views 

from Oak Harbor would be, in sorts, 

against this policy. 
Goal 4 - To preserve community 

character through quality design. 
 

4.a Encourage city 

beautification through design and 

quality standards for landscaping 

of both public facilities and 

private development. 

This policy addresses the visual interest 

created within the community by including 

landscaping for both public and private 

development 

4.c Require all public facilities 

constructed by public agencies to 

be appropriately landscaped and 

designed. 

The policy requires public facilities such as 

parks, open spaces, recreational areas, 

streets, public buildings etc. to be 

landscaped.  Landscaping is one of those 

polices that is repeated several times within 

the Comprehensive Plan as a way to further 

various goals of the community.  

4.d Identify, preserve and 

enhance desired views of water, 

mountains or other unique 

landmarks or landscape features.  

Such views should be regarded as 

important and valuable civic 

assets. 

 

(+) This policy directly addresses the 

preservation of views, and their importance 

and value to the community. 

Urban Design Element  
Goal 5 -  Protect viewsheds and view 

corridors. 

Discussion: The City of Oak Harbor 

defines viewsheds as a panoramic view 

from a single location.  Significant 

viewsheds include views of Mt. Baker, Mt. 

Rainier, Cascade mountain range, Olympic 

mountain range, Oak Harbor Bay, Maylor 

Point (especially wooded and tidal flat 

(+) This goal directly addresses the 

importance of view corridors from Oak 

Harbor by identifying some major points of 

interest that can be viewed from Oak 

Harbor.  This goal also provides a link 

between view corridors and a desire to 

protect them by appropriately guiding 

development. 

22



7 
 

areas) and Saratoga Passage.  The view 

corridors and viewsheds within the City 

should be identified and accurately mapped 

at a useable scale so they can appropriately 

guide development. 

5.a Consideration of building 

impacts on viewsheds and view 

corridors shall be exercised in all 

developments, and mitigation 

measures shall be applied to 

protect existing views. 

Discussion: The City may 

incorporate policies and guidelines to 

protect these resources, such as 

developing: a unified bulk program 

for building envelopes; performance 

based zoning; and, density bonuses 

as development incentives. 

 

(+)  This policy provides some direction on 

ways to protect scenic corridors.  This 

policy also recognizes that the blocking 

scenic view is a impact and calls for the 

application of “mitigation” measures to 

protect the larger interest of preserving 

community character and visual identity.  

5.b Landscape buffers shall be 

required along major arterials, 

retaining existing vegetation 

where possible. 

(-) This policy addresses views within Oak 

Harbor and its enhancement through 

landscaping.  However, measures to protect 

viewsheds from Oak Harbor of the 

mountains and water by minimizing 

landscaping or eliminating them may 

contradict with this policy. 

5.c Free standing business signs 

should be consistent with the 

speed limit of roadways, and the 

character of land use districts. 

This is not directly applicable to protecting 

views but suggests that signs can be 

regulated to serve specific roadways and 

land use districts. 

5.d Developments along Oak 

Harbor's waterfront should 

enhance the area's natural and 

physical aesthetics. 

This policy again indicates the importance 

to the community on natural areas and 

physical aesthetics. 

5.e Scenic transportation routes 

should be identified.  Adjacent 

properties owners will be 

encouraged to protect scenic 

values. 

(+)  This policy directly encourages 

property owners adjacent to scenic 

viewsheds and corridors to protect them. 

5.f The City and the Navy 

should cooperate on the 

protection of viewsheds and view 

corridors. 

The policy indicates the importance of 

protecting scenic views at the inter-

governmental level. 

Parks and Recreation Element  

Open Space 

k. Identify and protect 

important “view corridors” 

This policy suggests identifying the “view 

corridors” and then protecting them. 

23



8 
 

that provide visual access to 

scenic vistas. 

 

 

 

(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the countywide 

planning policies. 

The proposed change to include scenic view corridors in the Comprehensive Plan does 

not create any inconsistencies with the Growth Management Act or the County Wide 

Policies. 

 

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the community as a 

whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 

Identifying and protecting scenic views within the community was initiated by the 

community during the Comprehensive Plan Docket process and approved by the City 

Council.  Therefore this can be viewed as addressing a need within the community. 

 

(5) Environmental impacts from the amendments have been addressed through SEPA review 

and/or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 

There are no immediate environmental impacts from adding language in the 

Comprehensive Plan to identify the scenic corridors within Oak Harbor.  However, some 

of the view corridors that are identified for protection may involve working with a private 

owner during the design of a development.  Any impacts to the environment for 

protecting these views can be mitigated with the development of property.  

   

(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which were the 

basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth allocations. 

The proposed language to identify and protect scenic views will not impact growth 

projections and is not applicable to this amendment 

 

(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and surrounding 

neighborhoods. 

Identifying and protecting scenic view corridors will not create incompatibilities in land 

uses or the surrounding neighborhoods.  Any impacts during site development can be 

mitigated at the time of development review. 

 

(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city council.  

The City Council’s approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment docket every year 

provides the policy direction necessary to do studies such as this.  Identifying and 

protecting scenic views from Oak Harbor is not a new policy direction since there are 

several goals and policies currently in the Comprehensive Plan to address it.  This 

amendment identifies key locations within the City for consideration. 

 

(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified at the beginning of the process.  

 The Planning Commission identified specific criteria to review the scenic views.  The 

criteria are listed below along with the importance of each criterion.  Each criterion was 

given a rating scale provided at the bottom of the table below.  All the scenic views 

24



9 
 

identified through the study have been reviewed against these criteria.    

 

Proposed Criteria Rating Scale* 

View from public property H 

View from streets 
 

SR 20 M 

Arterial M 

Collector L 

Local L 

View from a pedestrian route H 

View of a specific landmark H 

The need to buy property D1 

The need for special zoning regulations D 

Entry way views H 

Waterfront connectivity H 

Total 
 *Rating Scale: H= High(100 points), M=Medium(50 points), L=Low(25 points), D1=Deduct (-100 

points) and D = Deduct (-50 points) 

 

From the above review, it can be determined that the proposed amendment to the Comprehensive 

Plan will further several goals within the Plan and will likely not create adverse impacts to the 

community.   

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Conduct Public Hearing 

 Recommend amending the Comprehensive Plan, specifically Goal 5 of the Urban Design 

Element with language as proposed in Exhibit A. 
 
  
  

25



10 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 

Goal 5 -  Protect viewsheds and view corridors. 

Discussion 

The City of Oak Harbor defines viewsheds as a panoramic view from a 

single location.  Significant viewsheds include views of Mt. Baker, Mt. 

Rainier, Cascade mountain range, Olympic mountain range, Oak Harbor 

Bay, Maylor Point (especially wooded and tidal flat areas) and Saratoga 

Passage.  View corridors are defined as views of landmarks or landscapes 

that are visible along a traveled path such as a public street or trail such as 

SR 20, SE Pioneer Way and the waterfront trail.  The view corridors and 

viewsheds within the City should be identified and accurately mapped at a 

useable scale so they can appropriately guide development. 

 

The City conducted a scenic view study in 2014 and determined that the 

following view corridors are important to protect. 

 Northbound on SR 20 between SW Scenic Heights Street 

and SW Erie Street 

 Southbound on SR 20 between NE 16
th

 Ave and Midway 

Blvd 

 SE Regatta Drive between SE 8
th

 Street and SE 10
th

 Street 

 Waterfront Trail from Windjammer Park to the Oak Harbor 

Marina 

 

The protection of the scenic views identified above should be done in 

coordination with adjacent property owners at the time of development 

using the policies listed below in conjunction with the application of 

existing design guidelines and administrative design flexibility.   

 

Policy:  5.a Consideration of building impacts on 

viewsheds and view corridors shall be exercised in all 

development, and mitigation measures shall be applied to protect 

existing views. 

 

Discussion 

The City may incorporate policies and guidelines to protect these 

resources, such as developing: a unified bulk program for building 

envelopes; performance based zoning; and, density bonuses as 

development incentives. 

 

5.b Landscape buffers shall be required along major arterials, 

retaining existing vegetation where possible. 

 

26



11 
 

5.c Free standing business signs should be consistent with the 

speed limit of roadways, and the character of land use 

districts. 

 

5.d Development along Oak Harbor's waterfront should 

enhance the area's natural and physical aesthetics. 

 

5.e Scenic transportation routes should be identified.  Adjacent 

properties owners will be encouraged to protect scenic 

values. 

 
5.f The City and the Navy should cooperate on the protection 

of viewsheds and view corridors. 
 

27


	AGENDA - August 26, 2014
	MINUTES - July 22, 2014
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – URBAN GROWTH AREAAMENDMENT/CORRECTION
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – SCENIC VIEWS



